
• 

I N THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF ALASKA 

ALASKAN ADVENTURE TOURS , ) Supreme Court No . S-14483 
INC., KIMBERLY RIEDEL- ) 
BYLER, aka KIMBERLY C. ) 
RIEDEL, K. CHRISTINA ) 
RIEDEL and/or KIMBERLY ) Trial Court Case #lJU-08-438 CI 
BYLER, and ABC LEASING, ) 
LLC, ) 

) 

Appellants, ) 
) 

vs. ) 
) 

THE CITY AND BOROUGH OF ) 
YAKUTAT, ) 

) 

Appellee . ) 

---------------------) 

APPEAL FROM THE SUPERIOR COURT, 

FIRST JUDICIAL DISTRICT AT JUNEAU, 

THE HONORABLE PATRICIA A. COLLINS, PRESIDING 

APPELLANTS' CORRECTED SUPPLEMENTAL EXCERPT OF RECORD 
VOLUME 1 OF 1 

John E. Casperson, ASBA #7910076 
HOLMES WEDDLE & BARCOTT 

Filed in the Supreme Court of the 
State of Alaska, this /D day of 17 2012. 

999 Third Avenue, Suite 2600 
Seattle, Washington 98104 
Phone: (206) 292-8008 
Attorneys for Appellant 

Marilyn May, Clerk of the Appellate Court 

By: . &iA.o, ~ 
Deputy Clerk 



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

VOLUME 1 

Memorandum on Sanctions and Attorney's Fees . .. . . . . . .. . .. 504 
Deposition of John Nichols ...... .. ....... ..... .. . .... 519 (a) 
Deposition of Robert Cox ........ .. . . ..... .. . . . ....... . . . 520 
Deposition of Brian Lucas Barton ......... . ... . . . . ... ... . 523 
Errata to Notice of Filing Unsigned Affidavit of 

Kimberly Byler . .. . . .. ...... ... . .. . .. .... . . .. ... ...... 526 

AAT v. CBY 
Case 8-14483 
SUPPLEMENTAL EXCERPT OF RECORD 



Case 10-00282 Doc 87 Filed 11/17/10 Entered 11/17/10 13:26:19 Desc Main 

In re: 

Document Page 1 of 16 

UNinEDSTATESBANKRUPTCYCOURT 
FOR THE DISTRICT OF ALASKA 

ALASKAN ADVENTIJRE TOURS, 
INC., 

" Case No. AIO-00282-DMD 
Chapter 11 

Debtor. Filed On 
11117110 

MEMORANDUM ON SANCTIONS AND ATTORNEY'S FEES 

The City and Borough of yakutat's ("CBY") motion for attorney's fees under 

Ru1e 9011 and Gary Spraker's application for attorney's fees du1y came before the court for 

hearing on September 30, 2010. This court has jurisdiction over the dispute in accordance 

with 28 U.S.C. § 157(bX2)(A)and the districfcourt's order of reference. CBY's motion for 

attorney's fees will be denied. I will allow Mr. Spraker's attorney's fees in the sum of 

$38,810.00 and costs in the SUlll or $2,158.20. 

BackgOO1md 

In my memorandum on dismissal, relieffrom stay and adequate protection, the 

events leading up to the debtor's Chapter 11 filing were summarized. I incorporate this 

prior memorandum by reference. 1 

Gary Spraker, attorney for the debtor, and Steve Shamburek, attorney for the 

creditor, were in contact with one another regarding the Bylers' dispute with CBY in early 

April of 2010. Spraker pleaded with Sharnburek not to execute against the Bylers' two 

I Docket No. 55, Memorandum on Dismissal, Relief from Stay, and Adequate Protection. 
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vessels. He requested time to prepare a bankruptcy petition. Shamburek refused his request 

and indicated CBY's intention to execute on its judgment? CBYarrested the debtor's 

vessels onApri18, 2010 at approximately 1'0:00 a.m. The debtor filed its bankruptcy petition 

at 12:20 p .m. on the same day. 

CBY filed motions to dismiss, for relief from stay and for adequate protection 

on April 21 , 2010. CBY alleged that the debtor's Chapter 11 filing was made in bad faith. 

The motions were heard on May 18, 2010 and May 24, 2010. At the conclusion of oral 

argument on May 24th, the parties stipulated that this court defer its decision until a status 

conference on June 7, 2010. In the interim, Spraker filed a motion to conduct business 

outside the ordinary course. He sought to move the MN Sound Adventurer from Kodiak 

Island to Amelia, Louisiana for work on the British Petroleum Gulf of Mexico oil spill. A 

hearing on the debtor' s motion was held on June 7th, 2010 along with the status conference. 

Shortly after the hearing on June 7th, the court entered an order granting the debtor's motion 

for authority to conduct business outside the ordinary course.3 Paragraph three of the order 

provided for adequate protection payments to the CBY. Subject to several adjustments, CBY 

was to obtain adequate protection payments in the amount of 50%. of the daily charter rate 

received from British Petroleum or its subcontractor. CBY was also named as a loss payee 

on insurance and was to receive a preferred ship's mortgage while the vessel was in 

2 Docket No. 39, Exhibit A 

] Docket No. 53. 

2 
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Louisiana. CBY requested the court to rule on it's pending motions at the close of the 

hearing. It also sought to delay dismissal until four conditions were met. 4 

On June 18th, 2010 this court entered an order conditionally granting CBY's 

motion to dismiss, granting CBY's motion for relief from stay, and motion for adequate 

protection.5 The basis for the dismissal was bad faith.6 CB Y sought clarification of the order 

granting debtor's motion for authority to conduct business outside the ordinary COlll'l!e on 

August 5, 2010. After a hearing on August 17, 2010, the court entered an order that 

ultimately resolved the issue.' Gary Spraker filed an application for attorney'S fees on 

August 31, 2010.8 He seeks fees and costs of $42,468.20. CBY applied for fees under Rule 

9011 on September 10,2010.9 It seeks attorney's fees and costs of$42,899.50. Objections 

to both applications were filed and a hearing was held on September 30,2010. The motions 

are now ripe for determination. 

4 The conditions were as follows: (I) that the Alaska Federal District Court assume jurisdiction over 
an In rem action; (2) that a complaint pending in Alaska Federal District Court be amended to add an in 
persormam action; (3) that an order tegarding the /JPporntiiierito('1! i'ect'iver be entcrod tn AllISka Federal 
District Court, and (4) that to the extent it is appropriate. '!lit ~Ur«>~lXlurt' sordel'gtantin8 m(ltiulI- fOIl 
authority to conduct business outside the ordinary co~enl!!r<!dJune 7; 20 to (Pocket No. Sl).bi!> IIdQp~ 
by the Alaska Federal District Court. 

, Docket No. 56. 

6 Decker No. 55. 

7 Docket No. 67. 

• Decket No. 68. 

, Docket No. 75. 
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Rule 9011 provides in part: 

<a) SigDing of papers 
Every petition, pleading, written motion, 

and other paper, except a list, schedule, or 
statement, or amendments thereto, shall be signed 
by at least one attorney of record in the attorney's 
individual name. A party who is not represented 
by an attorney shall sign all papers. Each paper 
shall state the signer's address and telephone 
number, if any. An unsigned paper shall be 
stricken unless omission of the signature is 
corrected promptly after being called to the 
attention of the attorney or party. 

tb)Re.presentatioll8 .to the court 
. . By pres;nti~t(}the coW"t (wl1ethef by 
$igning,. fiiing, ~tnnitting,ot later ad".ocarlng) :a 

,pe~ion,pleading. writtenmoti'on,.ocotliilr paper, 
an:attomey QI: ~resented p!lro/1$C¢Itifying 
that to the best of the person's knowledge, 
information, and belief, formed after an inquiry 
reasonable under the circumstances, 

(l) it is not being presented for any 
improper pUIpose, such as to harass or to 
cause unnecessary delay or needless 
increase in the cost oflitigation; 

(2) the claims, defenses, and other 
legal contentions therein are warranted by 
existing law or by a nonfrivolous argument 
for the extension, modification, or reversal 
of existing law or the establishment of new 
law; 

(3) the allegations and other factual 
contentions have evidentiary support or, if 
specifically so identified, are likely to have 
evidentiary support after a reasonable 
opportunity for further investigation or 
discovery; and 

4 
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(4) the denials of factual 
contentions are warranted on the evidence 
or, if specifically so identified, are 
reasonably based on a lack of information 
or belief. 

(c) Sanctions 
If, after notice and a reasonable 

opportunity to respond, the court determines that 
subdivision (b) has been violated, the court may, 
subject to the conditions stated below, impose an 
appropriate sanction upon the attorneys, law 
finns, or parties that have violated subdivision (b) 
or are responsible for the violation. ... 10 

I found the authorities cited by the debtor's counsel on page 16 of his 

opposition to CBY's motion for attorney's fees to be persuasive. There he stated: 

As a preliminary matter, the burden of proofis on 
the party seeking sanctions under Rule 9011. In 
re Weaver, 307 B.R. 834, 841 (Bankr. S.D. Miss. 
2002); In re Kliegl Bros. Universal Elec. Stage 
Lighting Co., Inc., 238 B.R. 531, 541 (Bankr. 
B.D.N.Y. 1999). "Courts reserve Rule 9011 
sanctions for 'exceptional circumstances' where 
a claim is 'patently unmeritorious or frivolous .'" 
In re 15375 Memoria/ Corporation, 430 B.R 142, 
150 (Bankr. D. Del. 2010). The test for Rule 
9011 sanctions is stringent, in large part because, 
"[t]he rule is not intended to chill an attorney's 
enthusiasm or creativity in pursuing factual or 
legal theories." Id. (quoting Advisory Committee 
Notes for Fed. R Civ. P. 11); see a/so In re 
Aphton Corporation, 423 B.R 76, 96 (Bankr. D. 
Del. 2010); In re Lewis, 79 B.R. 893, 896 (9th 
Cir. B.A.P. 1990). As recognized by the 
bankruptcy court in In re HBA East, Inc., 101 
B.R 411, 415 (Bankr. B.D.N.Y. 1989), "any and 

10 Rule 9011, Fed. R. Bankr. Pro. 

5 
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all doubts must be resolved in favor of the 
signer." (footnotes omitted).l1 

In two appellate cases arising in the ninth circuit in the late 19805, the courts 

indicated that sanctions were mandatory when a Chapter 11 filing was dismissed on bad faith 

grounds. The first case was a ninth circuit BAP decision: Eighty South Lake, Inc. v. Bank 

of America.12 There the court affirmed a lower court ruling assessing sanctions for a bad 

faith Chapter 11 filing. The court stated: "Indeed, Bankr. Rule 9011 requires that the 

bankruptcy court impose sanctions upon a finding of bad faith . . . . "13 Later the ninth circuit 

addressed the issue in Mortgage Marl, Inc. v. Rechnitzer. U The court affirmed a lower court 

decision denying sanctions to a Chapter 13 creditor. It stated: "If the bankruptcy court 

determines as a factual matter that a debtor's successive filings were not proposed in good 

faith, the court must impose sanctions under Bankr. R 9011."u Under the version of Rule 

90 11 in effect in 1987 and 1988, a bankruptcy court had no discretion in imposing sanctions 

once a violation of the rule had been established. Ifa party violated the rule, the court "shall 

impose . .. an appropriate sanction. ,,16 

1\ Docket No. 81, at page 16. 

12 (In re South Lake, Inc.), 81 B.R. 580 (9th Cir. B.A.P. 1987). 

Il Eighty South Lake, Inc. v. Bartle of America (In re Eighty South Lake, Inc.), 81 B.R. at 582 . 

.. (In re Chisum). 847 F.2d 597 (9th Cir. 1988); ceri. denied, 488 U.S. 892 (1988). 

"Mortgage Mart. Inc. v. Rechnitzer (In re Chisum). 847 F. 2d at 599. 

" Bankruptcy Rule 9011 (1987-1988). In Reisland v. Nenana Heating Services,S A.B.R. 176, 178 
(D. Alaska 1998) the district court cited Eighty South Lake and Chisum as authority for the mandatory 
imposition of sanctions after .. bad faith filing. 

6 
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A number of courts did not agree with the imposition of "automatic" sanctions 

arising out of a bad faith filing. Prior to the decisions in Eighty South Lake and Mortgage 

Mart, a bankruptcy court in San Diego found that sanctions did not necessarily arise under 

such circumstances.17 The court stated: 

Although the Court has detennined that dismissal 
of this case pursuant to 11 U.S.c. § 1112(b) is 
appropriate, that does not and should not 
automatically result in the imposition of sanctions 
under Bankruptcy Rule 90 II. The standards for 
dismissing a case under § II 12(b) are different 
from the standards used to impose sanctions under 
Bankruptcy Rule 9011. Such a per se rule for the 
imposition of sanctions is inappropriate, 
particularly in an area of bankruptcy pmctice 
which is mpidly developing (i.e. bad faith filings). 
(footnotes omitted).18 

A number of courts have followed this decision. 19 Judge Trott, concurring in part and 

dissenting in part in Marsch v. Marsch,1O also found adoption of a per se rule inappropriate. 

The version of 9011 of the Federal Rules of Bankruptcy Procedure now in 

effect does riot contain the mandatory language of its predecessors. Now, if a court 

determines that a violation of 90 II (b) has occurred, the court "may ... impose an 

17 In re Southern California Sound Systems, Inc., 69 B.R. 893 (Bankr. S.D. Cal. 1987). 

" In re Southern California Sound Systems, Inc., 69 B.R. at 901. 

I' Federal Depo.sillnsuranee Corporation v. Fadili, 165 B.R. 58 (D. Mass. 1994); In re Nichols, 221 
B.R, 275 (Bankr. N.D. Ok. 1998); In re Park Place Associates, 118 B.R. 613 (Bankr. N.D. Ill. 1990); In re 
HBA East, Inc., 101 B.R. 411 (Bankr. E.D. N.Y. 1989). 

'" Marsch v. Marsch (In re Marsch), 36 F.3d 825, 832 at footnote 1 (9th Cir. 1994). The majority 
did not adopt a per se rule for the imposition of sanctions. It adopted a sliding scale approach at page 830 
of the decision. 

7 
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appropriate sanction.,,21 This change in the rule is significant: it gives this court discretion 

as to whether or not to apply sanctions, even if a violation of 90 1I (b) were to occur. There 

is no per se rule requiring the automatic imposition of sanctions after a dismissal on bad 

faith grounds. This court must detennine, independent of its' prior ruling, whether or not a 

violation of Rule 9011(b) has occurred. 

Under Marsch, "bankruptcy courts must consider both frivolousness and 

improper purpose on a sliding scale, where the more compelling the showing as to one 

element, the less decisive need be the showing as to the other."n Rule 9011 has been 

modified such that consideration of improper purpose now precedes that of frivolousness. 

Ru1e 9011 (b )(1) provides that an attorney or party signing a pleading certifies that to the best 

of their knowledge after reasonable inquiry that the pleading "is not being presented for any 

improper purpose, such as to harass or to cause unnecessary delay or needless increase in the 

cost oflitigation.'>23 CBY repeatedly points to this court's memorandum ofJune 17,2010 

and my fmding that the debtor was attempting to "unreasonably deter and harass" CBY 

through the fLIing of the Chapter 11 petition. CBYaiso cites my statement that the debtor's 

principals were seeking to "game the system" as further grounds for sanctions. Additionally, 

I also stated that the debtor's principals fraudulently transferred assets and entered into a 

collusive transaction where the debtor's assets were mortgaged for $2.5 million to the estate 

1I Rule 9011(c), Fed. R. Bankr. Pro. 

22 Marsch v. Marsch (In re Marsch), 36 F.3d at 830. 

" Rule 9011(bXI), Fed. R. Bankr. Pro. 

8 
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of Jerry Byler. It's certainly true that I made all those statements in the memorandum. But 

in reviewing the totality of the circurnstances,I made other findings that are not consistent 

with a finding of improper purpose under Rule 9011. They include the following: (1) the 

debtor had more than one creditor of substance; (2) the debtor may have work for the MIV 

Alasfcan Leader next summer; (3) there may be immediate work for what was then called the 

MlVSoundAdventure in the Gulf of Mexico; and (4) bankruptcy offered the only possibility 

offorestalling the imminent loss of the debtor's vessels to CBY. A.dditionally, I misread 28 

u.s.C. § 157(b)(2)(B) and found that a bankruptcy court could not estimate Jerry Byler's 

wrongful death claim for purposes of confirming a Chapter 11 plan. As correctly noted by 

Mr. Spraker, a bankruptcy court retains the power to estimate a wrongful death claim for plan 

confirmation purposes. It cannot liquidate the claim for distribution purposes, however. The 

fact that this court could estimate the claim for voting purposes is consistent with a fmding 

of proper purpose under Rule 9011(b)(1). 

My June 17th memorandum also considered the debtor' s and its principals' 

prepetition conduct at length. That conduct played a large part in my conclusion that the 

debtor was continuing, through the bankruptcy, its efforts to deter and harass CBY. My 

perspective has changed, however. It can now be seen that in fact the debtor was making 

substantial and good fajth efforts on behalf of the estate which continued past the point of 

conditional dismissal. The Bylers and their attorney Gary Spraker worked tirelessly to 

pursue a charter for the MN Sound Adventure (now the MIV Gulf Explorer) in the Gulf of 

Mexico. They transported the vessel by barge to Seattle, had repairs made there, and trucked 

9 
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the vessel to Louisiana in a very short period of time, fronting all the costs. The logistics of 

the move were fonnidable. Additionally, Spraker processed the documentation necessary 

for CBY to obtain a preferred marine mortgage on the vessel. The vessel has been insured 

for the benefit of CBY. Through the efforts of the Bylers and Spraker, CBY has received 

over $100,000.00 in payments. The bankruptcy estate has also received substantial amounts 

ofcash.24 

CBY dismisses this good fortune as simply a "fortuitous event" that the Bylers 

and Spraker could not foresee when the petition was filed. I disagree. At the time the 

petition was filed the Bylers were consulting with Aldrich Marine Services for work in the 

Beaufort and Chukchi Seas. Aldrich planned to charter the MIV Alaskan Leader in 

conjunction with Shell's offshore drilling pr'!.gram. The charter rate was to be $6,500.00 per 

day, even more lucrative than the Gulf of Mexico charter. Ironically, the Gulf of Mexico 

spill led the federal government to close the Shell offshore project for 20 1 O. The Byiers were 

quick on their feet, however, and converted this closure into a win-win situation for both 

themselves and CBY. It was not "fortuitous" because the Bylers were prepared to react 

quickly to a change of business circumstances. Moreover, they might have earned 

substantially more income if the Gulf of Mexico spill hadn't occurred. When presented with 

a business opportunity, the Byiers and Spraker pursued it with diligence even when 

substantial payments were to be made to CBY. "The court may examine an attorney's or 

party's postfiling actions to determine whether he or she believed that the claims asserted 

24 The cash may have gone to a receiver appointed by the United States District Court. 

10 
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were reasonable when the document was signed or filed.(footnotes omitted).,,25 Given the 

debtor's pre-petition contacts with Aldrich and their subsequent actions, I conclude that the 

filing of the petition was not made for any improper purpose or harassment within the 

meaning of Rule 9011 (b Xl). Rather, it was made for the legitimate purpose of reorganizing 

the debtor's business affairs. 

The second basis for sanctions is the filing of frivolous pleadings. A petition 

signed by a party or an attorney is a certification that "the claims, defenses, and other 

contentions therein are warranted by existing law or by a nonfrivolous argument for the 

extension, modification, or reversal of existing law or the establishment of new law.,,26 A 

frivolous filing is one that "is both baseless and made without reasonable and competent 

inquiry.,,21 "[Al legal position is unwarranted by law only where, after reasonable inquiry, 

an attorney would recognize that it is patently clear that the position has absolutely no chance 

of success ... if there is even modest difficulty in resolving the merits of the challenged 

position, then the Rule 11 certification has been satisfied. "28 

There was "modest difficulty" in resolving the merits of the challenged 

Chapter 11 petition. It wasn't patently clear that the debtor had no chance of successfully 

reorganizing when the petition was filed. The debtor owned two vessels, each of which had 

2010). 
2S 10 Collier on Bankruptcy, "19011.04[6], (Alan M. Resnick & Henry 1. Sommer eds., 15th ed. rev. 

26 Rule 901 1 (bX2), Fed. R. BIIl1kr. Pro. 

27 Tuwnsend v. Holman C07lSuiting Corp., 929 F. 2d 1358, 1362 (9th Cir. 1990) (en banc). 

,. In re HBA East, Inc., 101 B.R. 411, 415 (Bankr. E.D.N.Y. 1989) 

11 
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profitable commercial uses. The debtor had a good chance of obtaining lucrative work in the 

Beaufort and Chukchi Seas from Shell and Aldrich Marine Services at the time the petition 

was filed.29 Bankruptcy offered the only possibility of forestalling the imminent loss of the 

debtor's 'two vessels to CBY. CBY refused to give the debtor any time to prepare a 

bankruptcy petition before arresting of the vessels. 

CBY argues that the Bylers past misconduct made the filing for Chapter 11 

frivolous. Past misconduct is part of a "totality of circumstances" inquiry.30 Unquestionably 

the Bylers engaged in egregious pre-petition behavior, but that fact alone does not make the 

petition frivolous. There are no ninth circuit or Supreme Court decisions that draw a clear 

line in the sand as to which misbehaving debtors can or cannot seek Chapter 11 relief. Both 

David Bundy and Erik LeRoy, experienced Anchorage Chapter 11 attorneys, contend that 

filing a Chapter 11 petition was warranted under the facts of this case. Even Kay Hill, the 

assistant United States Trustee for Alaska, opposed dismissal. Courts are required to 

consider every circumstance when ruling on a motion to dismiss and bad behavior is but one 

part of the mix. There were substantial grounds for filing Chapter 11 despite the Bylers' pre-

petition actions. 

Moreover, none of this court's prior decisions regarding dismissal of a 

Chapterll petition for bad fhlth indicate that this debtor's petition was frivolous. In In re 

29 The debtor filed for Chapter 11 relief on AprilS, 2010. The Deepwater Horizon oil spill did not 
occur until April 20, 2010. The governmental shut-down of drilling did not occur until sometime after April 
20,2010. 

30 Leavitt v. Soto (In re Leavitt), 171 F.3d 1219, 1224 (9th Cir. 1999), citing Eisen v. Curry (In re 
Eisen), 14 F.3d 469, 470 (9th Cir. 1994). 

12 
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Nome Commercial Company, Jl tort creditor Vicki Higashi obtained a $1.4 million judgment 

against Nome Commercial Company. Nome Commercial Company appealed. I refused to 

dismiss Nome's Chapter 11 petition on bad faith grounds because execution on the judgment 

would severely impair the debtor's business. I concluded that use of Chapter 11 as a 

substitute for a bond on appeal was appropriate and refused to dismiss the petition. 

Similarly, in In re Zaruba, J2 the issue of Chapter 11 bad faith was again before this court. 

Huna Totem Corporation had a judgment against the debtor which was on appeal. Because 

of possible severe disruption to his business, I concluded that Zaruba's use of a Chapter 11 

petition in lieu of a bond to protect his assets on appeal was made in good faith. 33 While 

there were no appeals pending in this case at the time the petition was filed, it was warranted 

by existing law or by a nonfrivolous extension, modification or reversal of existing law or 

the establishment of new law. CBY sought to seize and sell the debtor's primary business 

assets. Because those assets were endangered, the debtor's Chapter 11 petition was not a 

frivolous filing. I conclude that Gary Spraker and Kimberly Reidel did not file a frivolous 

Chapter 11 petition in violation of Rule 9011 (b )(2). 

31 4 A.B.R. 358 (Bankr. D. Alaska 1996). 

32 8 A.B.R. 449 (Bankr. D. Alaska 2007). 

" I cited In re Marshall, 403 B.R. 668 (Bankr. CD. Cal. 2009), favorably in the Zaruba decision. 
Marshall was a dispute between brothers, the sons of billionaire J. Howard Marshall II. Pierce Marsball sued 
his brother Howard, and obtained. ~ $lZ tI'liIliOltjtldgmcJit llgainstblin tor f;-aw! w.ith mMiee. Howard 
appealed and filed for Chapter Il .reijef .. Th!i~~<lOUl:t retil5ed todiShllsS ~ Q$Con bad faith 
grounds. The court found that thejullgment WOlII~c:ll#~te.InPStGfHo\\'atd1s 8SSeI$ and tItat Howard could 
not post a bond Howard had also proposed a viable plan. The court denied the motion to dismiss on bad faith 
grounds. 

13 
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I have considered both improper purposes and frivolousness under Rule 90 II. 

There are no grounds for the imposition of sanctions under either subsection, with or without 

a sliding scale. Rule 9011 is not a fee-shifting mechanism and the imposition of sanctions 

is no longer mandatory under Rule 90 11 (c). Even if there were grounds for sanctions under 

Rule 90 11 (b), I would exercise my discretion and not impose them in this case. Nor would 

I impose sanctions based on a bankruptcy court's inherent power to sanction.'4 CBY's 

motion for attorney's fees under Rule 9011 will be denied. 

Gary Spraker has applied for attorney's fees of $40,310.00 and costs of 

$2,15S.20 for work performed from AprilS, 2010 through August 31, 2010. CBYand the 

United States Trustee have objected to the fees. CBY's objections generally parallel it's 

motion for sanctions. It cites a number of cases holding that no fees are allowable to an 

attorney who should have known that a Chapter 11 was futile." They do not apply here 

because Spraker knew that the debtor was negotiating a profitable charter arrangement with 

Aldrich Marine Services at the time of the filing of the petition. Mr. Spraker did not know 

that the Chapter 11 was futile. 

34 CBY contends that this court has the inherent power to sanction under Chambers v. NASCa, Inc., 
SOl U.S. 32 (I 99 I)(rebearing denied SOl U.S. 1269). 

"Grunewaldt v. Mutual Life Insurance Co. of America (In re Coones Ranch,Inc.), 7 F.3d 740,744 
(8th Cir. 1993); Rubner & Cutner, P.C. 11. U.S. Trustee (In re Lederman Enterprises, Inc.), 997 F.2d 1321, 
1324 (10th Cir. 1993); In re Reed, 890 F.2d 104, 105-106 (8th Cir. 1989); New York Credit Men's 
Adjustment Bureau, Inc. v. Balian, Stoll & Itzler (In re Casco Fashions, Inc.), 490 F.2d 1197, 1198 (2nd Cir. 
1973); Roberts, Sheridan&Kote~ P.e. 11. Bergun BrunswigDrug Co. (InreMednet), 251 B.R. 103, 107-108 
(9th Cir. B.A.P. 2000); Miner v. Westergren, Hauptman, O'Brien, Wolfe & Hadley, P.C. (In the Matter of 
King), 96 B.R. 206, 207-208 (W.D. Mo. 1989); In re G. W.C. Financial and Ins. Services, Inc., 8 B.R. 122, 
125 (Bankr. C.D. Cal. 1981). 
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CBY argues that the schedules were incorrect in listing the Jeny Byler 

wrongful death claim as undisputed and CBY's judgment claims as unsecured, disputed and 

contingent. Mr. Spraker candidly admitted that there were errors in the schedules. If this 

case were continuing, appropriate amendments would be required. Changes to the schedules 

now would be pointless. I will deduct $1,500.00 from his application for scheduling errors. 

CBY claims the bulk of fees were incurred to fight bad faith dismissal, for 

which the estate received no benefit. I disagree. If Mr. Spraker had rolled over on the 

dismissal, the debtor would have lost control of its assets. Without them, it could not have 

performed the valuable charter in the Gulf of Mexico. This is a rare case where attorney's 

fees are justified in spite of the dismissal. 

The United States Trustee has filed a partial objection to fees. She seeks to 

share an administrative priority with Mr. Spraker as to any unpaid quarterly fees . I will 

include such a provision in my order for payment of fees. Additionally, I will include a 

judgment for quarterly fees in my final order dismissing this case. 

Conclusion 

The debtor and Mr. Spraker have produced a benefit for CBYand the estate. 

They should not be penalized for their efforts. I will not sanction Gary Spraker, Kimberly 

Riedel or the debtor for filing a Chapter 11 petition under the circumstances of this case. I 

will allow his reasonable attorney's fees and costs. An appropriate order andjudgment will 

be entered. 
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DATED: November 17, 2010. 

Serve: ·G. Sprakci', Esq. 
J . Btennart; EsQ •. 
. S; Sharrtburek,.Bsq, 
KHi14Esq: . 
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IN THE U9ITRD STATES DISTRICT COURT 
FOR IRE DIST~IC~ OF ALASKA , , 

ESTATE OF J[RRJ L. BYLER, ) 

Plaint~ff. J 

v , 

, 
i , 

ALASKAN LEADER. Official No. 558637, its 
Engines, Machir.ery, Appurtenances, etc .• 
In Rem, 81id A.I.ASEJUf ADVENTURE 

ICase No. 09-2-32978-8 SEA , , , 
TOURS, INC., in personam, I 

j 
Defendant~, I 

) 
CITY AND SQROllGH OF oot'J'I1l'l'1 ) 

I 
Intervenor. ) 

TELRPlIONIC DEPOSlTION UPON ORAL EXNflNlTION OF 
JOlIN Nt CKOLS 

February 24th, lOU 
10~OO a.m. 

999 Third Avenue 
Seattl~J Washington 

carl T. Beck, Court R~orter 
CCR 2952 

Van Pelt Corbett Sell0W5 
401 Second Avenue South * SUite 70e 



De', ... ,,;-~I:::I 01 ,ICHN N!~:'{oL$, 2i:i:W1t 

1 innstigaticJl. 
2 A I saw him OUt at the airport, but I don't recall what ti~ 
1 that ~'i:.9. 

4 Q Fair enough. 
5 Did you pick hi~ U) at the airport? 
6 A I OOQ't :recall pir.:t.ing up Trooper Cox. 

7 Q Do you r&call taking him either directiOD trom the airpoIt? 
B A I dC:j1t recall giving 7roopar Cox <i ride fror,1 the airport or 
9 back to the airport. 

10 Q. Do Iou recall any discussions with h1~ about your fIndings 
11 that you had made as ~art: of y;')ur investigation? 
12 A N<:lJ I do not. 
il Q So yau dc:-.'t know if ~'OJ even spoke with tbe man 0;:) May 
a 15th? 

15 A Yeah, I know I 3pO~~e wit~ him. I knOIt.' I met him witll 

16 He. Bylers fsic}. K1nb8rly Byl.xs and him wer£ in the hack 
17 of tr.e EMS t'OOIil.. 1 t-en:embe~ talking witb them., bat I don t t 

18 remeJl'.bar the cCI.versation. 
19 0 ~Jat'c th& ~MS 1sicl M roo~? 

2;: A That is t he upstairs attacb'TIent whe.:'E! the -- whl!I'e yeu do 
21 the EMS trair..ing. It's on the upper floor where the police 
22 station i:. You walk down a smallltallway. And it's kind. 

23 of a bigger toom, and that's where Trooper Cox and Kiiberly 
24 were. 
2S 0 All right. And so Trooper C!'X spoke with Kimberly 1n that 

'5\'1(6) 
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

FOR THE DISTRICT OF ALASKA 

4 ESTATE OF JERRY L . BYLER, 

5 Plaintiff, 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

vs . 

ALASKAN LEADER, Official 

No. 558637, its Engines, 

Machinery, Appurtenances, 

etc., In Rem, and ALASKAN 

ADVENTURE TOURS, INC., in 

personam, 

Defendants, 

I 
) 

) 

) 

). 

) IN ADMIRALTY 

) 

) 

) 

l 

CITY AND BOROUGH OF YAKUTAT, ) Case No. 3:10-cv-00055-HRH 

12 } 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

Intervenor. ) 

DEPOSITION OF ROBERT COX 

Pages 1 through 122, Inclusive 

Taken: Friday, May 6, 2011 

Place: Juneau, Alaska 

1 
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1 Q. Were you surprised to see Ms. Byler at 

2 the police station? 

3 

4 

A. 

Q. 

No. 

When you rode in with -- from the 

5 airport to the police station with Chief Nichols, 

6 he didn't give you any information as to the 

7 whereabouts of Ms. Byler? 

8 A. I don't recall him telling me where she 

9 was. 

10 Q. Okay. So he didn't tell you he had 

11 just taken her to the airport? 

12 A. I don't recall him talking about that 

13 at all. We talked about the interview and the 

14 content of the interview. As to her specific 

15 location, I don't recall him mentioning anything 

16 about that. 

17 Q. So if Chief Nichols had testified under 

18 oath that he had just dropped off Ms. Byler at the 

19 airport when he picked you up at the airport, do 

20 you have an understanding of whether that's true or 

21 

22 

not? 

A. No, I don't -- I don't remember that at 

23 all. I don ' t~- I don't know anything about that. 

24 

25 

Do you know whether it's true or false? 

I don't know if it's true or false. He 
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1 may have. I don't know . 

2 Q. And when you are a rriving to 

3 investigate a death, wouldn't it be important for 

4 your local man to let you know the location of all 

5 the witnesses? 

6 A. Well, yeah. And it was my 

7 understanding that she was going to be back at the 

8 office and I could speak with her there, and that 

9 this Pam was on her way, coming also. So it was my 

10 understanding that I was going to meet with them 

11 all there at the police station. 

12 Q. And you got that understanding from 

13 Chief Nichols? 

1 4 

15 

16 

17 

18 

Yes . A. 

Q. Do you recall what Ms. Byler looks 

like? 

A. Not off the top of my head now. It's 

been too long. 

19 Q. Do you recall whether she was tall? 

20 short? Anything really unusual about her? 

21 A. No. If I had to make a guess, I think 

22 she has blond hair. But other than that -- she's 

23 white, and I think has blond hair. But other than 

24 that, I don't recall. 

25 Q. And in your investigation in dealing 
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l:N THE UNl:TED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

DISTRl:CT OF ALASKA 

ESTATE OF JERRY L. BYLER, 

Pl.aintiff, 

VS. 

ALASKAN LEADER, Official. No. 558637, 
its Engines, Machinery, Appurtenances, 
etc., In Rem, and ALASKAN ADVENTURE 
TOURS, INC., in person~, 

Defendant, 

Cl:TY AND BOROUGH OF YAKUTAT, 
l:ntervenor. 

l:N ADMJ:RALTY 
Case No. 3:10-cv-00055-HRH 

I 

DEPOSITION OF BRIAN LUCAS BARTON 

Pages 1 - 130, incl.usive 

Tuesday, May 17, 2011 
l.:30 p •. m. 

Taken by Plaintiff 
at 

Beut Western Bidarka 
575 Sterling Highway 

Homer, Alaska 99603 

Reported by: Leonard J. DiPaol.o, RPR CRR 

Peninsula Reporting 

1 
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I 
I 
I • 

j, 
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ESTATE OF BYLERv. 
ALASKAN LEADER, et al. 

1 A. No, sir. 

Page 50 

2 Q. And in the past had you told Darren Byler that you 
3 were IntervieWed first? 
4 A. Not to my recollection. 
s Q. All right. So you said Kimberly went in for her 
6 Interview first? 
7 A. As far as I remember, that's the way It happened. 
B Q. Where did you see her go? 
9 A. Into the office where Nichols was. 

: 10 Q. Did someone oome out and ask for her? 
11 A. I believe liD. 

: 12 Q. Do you recall who K was that came out? 

. 13 A. No, I don't. 
i 14 Q. So what are you dOing while you're sitting there 
15 waiting? 
16 A. I just sat there and waited, Just hung out. 
17 Q. Do you have an idea how long it was? 

: 18 A. It was quite a while. Probably 20 minutes, I'd 
19 say, to the best of my memory. 
20 Q. An right. And what did you do next? 

, 21 A. I went in for an interview after that. 
• 22 Q. And roughly how long was your interview? 

23 A. Probably about the same. 
24 Q. So you get out of your interview, what do you do 
25 next? 

Page 51 

BRIAN BARTON 
May 17,2011 

Page 52 

1 Pam had a van that they had rented, and we went to eat 
2 lunch with Kimberly, me, Eddie and Pam. 
3 Q. And you mentioned that Eddie and Pam had a 
4 vehicle. Old you have a vehicle there yourself? 
5 A. No, I did not. 
6 Q. Did you rent a vehicle? 
7 A. No, I was with Eddie and Pam. I just used their 
B van that they had rented. 
9 Q. So you, Eddie, Pam, and Kimberiy go 10 lunch. 

10 What happens next? 
11 A. We ate lunch and then we took her to the airport 
12 In the van, dropped her off. Kind of a sigh of relief to 
13 all three of US, actually. Walked over to the Yakutat 
14 Lodge and booked a steelhead IIshing trip and got drunk. 

. 15 Q. And when you said "dropped her off", who did you 
16 mean? 
17 A. We dropped Kimberly Byler off at the airport. 
18 Q. And on this issue of the vehicle, if State Trooper 
19 Cox had said that you hed rented a vehicle while you were 
~ 0 there on that first day for the interviews, would that be 
,21 inCO"6ct? 

'2 A. We definitely had the vehicle the first day we 
23 were In Yakutatfor the interviews. 
It Q. But did you yourself rent it? 
,25 A. No, sir. 

Page 53 

1 A. We waited for Eddie and Pam to be IntervieWed. 1 Q . All right Now you've dropped Kimbe~y off at the 
2 They flew in aft.r we did and they had showed up there'j 2 airport. You mentioned you went and had a few drinks. 
3 Q. Where did you wait for Eddie and Pam to show up l Old you go back to work for MT after that? 
.. at? " A. No, sir. 
5 A. The same building where the interviews took place. 5 MR. WALLER: Jim, we've been at it a little 
6 Q. And during that time did you .Ieave that building? 6 bit. I want to take a break, look over my notes, see If I 
7 A. No. 7 have any more questions, and then I'U probably be ready 
8 Q. Did you see Kimberly leave the building? 8 10 pass the witness. So we can go off the record. 
9 A. No. 9 MR. BRENNAN: Okay . . 

10 Q. Did there come a time later that you were 10 (Off the record.) 
11 introduced 10 a state trooper by the name of Cox? 11 MR. WALlER: Beck on the record. 
12 A. Not that t noeall. 12 BY MR. WALLER: 
13 Q. So Pam and Eddie show up to be interviewed. Do 13 Q. Mr. BarIon, you understand you're sUIl under 
14 you stay In the building during their interviews? 14 oath? 
15 A. For the most part, yeah. I was In and out of the 15 A. Yes, sir. 
16 building the whole time. Probably had a couple more 16 Q. I just want 10 kind of go back and fill in a 

17 cigarettes and .tretched my legs and tried to cle.r the 17 Iittie more details on a couple things. 
18 mind of what had just happened. 18 When you arrived on the small plane at that 
19 Q. And when you would step out of the building to 19 kind of landing strip area in Yakutat with Jerry's body 
20 smoke a cigarette, would Kimberly go with you? '0 and Klmberiy, do you have a rough idea of what time it 
21 A. No, not that I remember. 21 was? 
22 Q. So just by yourself? 22 A. No, I don't. I 

23 A. Yeah. 23 Q. When you arrived at the police station, do you 
24 Q. So what happens next? :24 recall noting the time? 
25 A. After Eddie and Pam were Interviewed, Eddie and 25 A. No, I don't. 

.L-~ __________________________ .. ______ ~ ________________________________ __ 

Peninsula Reporting 
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ESTATE OF BYLER v. 
ALASKAN LEADER, et al. 

BRIAN BARTON 
" , , " ' , May 17, 2011 
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1 So let me just ask you. When you told me, 1 Q. Do you remember It was a policeman other than 
• what did you lell me who was interviewed fIrSt? 2 Chief Nichols? 
3 A. I believe I told you I was Interviewed first, to I" 3 A. Yes, It was. police other than Chl.f Nichols. I 
4 the best of my knowledge. 4 don't remember if it was a city cop or a state trooper or 
5 Q. And Is that correct? 5 who he was. But it wasn't an Interview like this one we 
6 A. rm pretty sure it is. I can't honestly say. I 6 have on Exhibit 6, it wasn't nothing like thal It was 
7 It's been a long time, man, :' 7 just brief conversation. 
s Q. So then when you were asked again by Mr" Waller, I' S Q. Did he arrive at the station before - at the 
9 you testified that stie was interviewed first. ' 9 police slation before Eddie McDonald and Pam Girdwood? 

10 A. I don't know who was Interviewed firsl t • 10 MR, WALlER: Objection to form. 
11 honestly can't say, I really can'l It's all starting to 11 THE WITNESS: I can't remember. 
12 get too much. 12 BY MR. BRENNAN: 
13 Q . Sure. So your final testimony on this Is you 13 Q. Did you give the slate trooper - or did you give 
14 don't know whether she was Interviewed first or you were ' 14 this other policeman any photographs? 
15 interviewed first, Is that correct? ' 15 A. Not that I recall. 
16 A. Yep. If you have It on record from when we talked ,16 Q. And when this other policeman ceme, did he 
,17 six months ago, It was probably clearer in my mind then,. 17 interview Eddie McDonald or Pam Girdwood? 
,18 Q. Well, I didn't record you, if that's what you're lB A. Not to my recollection. 
19 asking. 19 Q. What were you doing during that time after they 

. :10 A. All right I wish I could say, guys. IJust '20 arrived? 
, 21 really - I can't. I don't know. 21 A. Just hanging out waiting for everyone to get done ' 
'22 Q. Thafs qu~e all right. We are used 10 that with 32 dOing their In"'rvlews and giving their statements . 

• 23 witnesses, especially on something four years ago. ' 23 Q. Where were you hanging out? 
24 So you also testified In response 10 a ' 24 A. InsIde the building some, outside the building. 
25 question that Mr. Waller asked you this moming thai you 25 Q. Having a smoke? 

1 
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rode to the airport with Kimberly and the body and that a 1 A. Yeah. 
lady with the police department or the city drove you; do 2 Q. More than once? 
you remember that? 3 A. Oh, yeah, probably. It was taking a while. I was 
A. Yes. 4 stressed. 
Q. And when did that occur? 5 Q. How long was il until-- after you finished your 
A. Me and Kimberly flew from Icy Bay to Yakutat 6 interview, okay, until you left the station In the van? 

together with the body. And after we got to the airport, 7 A. How long was that? 
we got a ride with someone to the police station and I • 8 Q . Yeah. I mean, are we talking -, 
believe the body was In the rig. ", 9 A. I would say It was at least an hour. 

• Q. Now, did you get a ride back 10 the airport wnh :' 1,0 Q. And that'. In a van that had been rented by Eddie 
someone from the police department? 11 McDonald? 
A. No. 12 A. Yes. 
Q. Old Kimberly? !1.3 Q. And you never returned 10 Icy Bay? 
A, No. She went to the restaurant with me, Pam, and 14 A. No. 

Eddie. 15 Q. Did you leave any of your personal belongings 
a. Did Pam and Eddie arrive right away at the police 16 \here? 

station? ,17 A. Ye •• 

A. No. It was 25 to 30 minutes later. 118 Q. Why Is that? 
Q. ' And did the state trooper come In at that pOint? 19 A. Juet because I didn't -I wanted to leave. 

Do you remamber Trooper Cox? 20 Q. Old you have any fear of going back 10 the vessels 
A. I don't remember Trooper Cox. 21 in Icy Bay? 
Q. Do you remember talking to any policeman other 22 A. KInd of, yeah. 

than Chief Nichols? 23 Q. Why is thai? 

A. I remember talking to a polic:eman, but I don't 2t A. I didn't WM! to get in trouble for not having the 
remember who It was. 25 proper paperwork In the areas we were hunting. And II was 

Pen/nluJa Reporting (26) Pag.102 - Pag.lOS 
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IN THE SUPERIOR COURT FOR THE STATE OF ALASKA 

FIRST JUDICIAL DISTRICT AT JUNEAU 

The City and Borough of Yakutat, 

Plaintiff, 

vs. 

Alas.kan Adventure Tours, Inc., 

Defendant. 

) 
) 
) 
) 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

______ --__ ~ ____ ~----~~--------~) Case No. lJU-08-434 CI 
) 

The City and Borough of Yakutat, 

vs. 

Supplemental Complaint 
Plaintiff, 

ABC Leasing, LLC and Kimberly 
Riedel-Byler, a/k/a Kimberly c. 
Riedel, K. Christina Riedel and/or 
Kimberly Byler, 

Supplemental Complaint 
Defendants. 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

) 
) 
) 
) 

) 
) 
) 

I~~~~~~~--~~--------) 

BBRATA TO 
HOTXCB OJ! lI'XLXNG tlIIl'SXGIIlED APTIDAVXT 01' 

KTMBKIlT.Y Bn.BJil 

Come now defendants, by and through counsel, 

Ingaldson, Maassen & Fitzgerald, P.C., and give notice of 

the filing of the unsigned Affidavit of Kimberly Byler, a 

City v. Alaskan Adventure 
Case lJU-08-434 CI 
Errata to Notice 
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copy of which is attached hereto . The unsigned affidavit 

fax fi led yesterday with tt1e court has been replaced by 

The original affidavit will be filed with the 

court upon receipt from Kimberly Byler. 

Dated at Anchorage, Alaska May 20, 2011. 

CERTUICATE OF SERVICli: 

INGALDSON, MAASSEN & 
FITZGERALD, P.C. 
Attorneys for Defendants 

![ty"'rJ.s. ~~ .... .i.J,., ~.1.rst Class, ?ost.aga p~p.paid 
• r I l!3'",.-O"U very 
· t 4"""Fa>; to 278-0977 
[ 1 F.')d , . .'ra l E:<['ress 

!'lis. Sc.rc:l F'. lie.i.deman, Attorney 
James T. Brennan, Esquire 

: .lh:.:dland t Srenn6fl & Heidam.ln, PC 
: 1~2~; West Nin'th Avenue, Su~.te 300 
Anc.horat;e, N< 99501 
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IN THE SUPERIOR COURT FOR THE STATE OF ALASKA 
FIRST JUDICIAL DISTRICT AT JUNEAU 

The City and Borough of Yakutat, 

Plaintiff, 

v. 

Alaskan Adventure Tours, Inc., 

Defendant Case No. lJU-08-434 CI 

DECLARATION OF KIMBERLY BYLER 

I, Kimberly Byler, declare as follows: 

I. I have reviewed the deposition transcript of retired A1asi<a State Sergeant 

Cox. His memory is incorrect on a couple of minor points, but he confinns my testimony 

and contradicts Chief Nichols of the City and Borough of Yakutat (''CBY'') in some 

significant respects. 

2. Sergeant Cox testified that he was picked up at the airport by Chief 

Nichols. He was told by Chief Nichols on the way to the police station that I was at the 

police station where he could interview me. This is exactly the opposite of Chief 

Nichols' testimony at trial, where he said that he had dropped me offat the airport while 

picking up Sergeant Cox. ChiefNichoIs either lied to Sergeant Cox or he lied at trial. 

Both stories can't be right. In fact, I was at the police station awaiting Sergeant Cox's 

arrival, as I was the key person in the Trooper investigatiolL 

3. Sergeant Cox testified that he was picked up at the airport by Chief 

Nichols and was taken back to the airport by him. Chief Nichols didn't remember any of 

this at trial or in his recent deposition in the fedcml casco I don't understand how he 

OECLARA nON Of KIMBERLY BYLER 
CBrv. ALASKAN ADVeNTURE TOURS 
Case No. IlU-O~34 Cl - Page I of' 

supp EXC. 528 



could remember my ride to the airport, yet he did not remember anything about Sergeant 

Cox' trips to and from the airport. 

4. Sergeant Cox also said that he was told by Chief Nichols on the way to the 

police station that Jerry's body was not going north, but was going south to Juneau. CBY 

claimed in its opposition that Chief Nichols took me to the airport in a rush after my 

phone call at 12: 18 pm to make the northbound flight. I was not going a different 

direction than Jerry's body, obviously, so this is another contradiction in Chief Nichols' 

testimony. In fact, Chief Nichols told me in the recorded interview that I was not going 

to make the northboWld flight. I accepted that, and had no intentions of going north, but 

planned to go south with Jerry's body to Juneau. Sergeant Cox confirms that Chief 

Nichols knew that when they met at the airport, so CBY's recent story about rushing me 

to the airport to go north is just that, a story, without a shred of truth. The CB Y phone 

records have made it impossible for CBY to develop a story that can accommodate both 

the phone records and Chief Nichols' claims about taking me to the airport. 

5. Sergeant Cox testified that 1 was not at the police station when he arrived, 

but arrived with Brian Barton 5 or 10 minutes after him in a rented vehicle. In fact, he 

probably has us confused with Pam Girdwood and Eddie McDonald, who anived a short 

time after Sergeant Cox did. They came on a later flight from Icy Bay and Mr. McDonald 

rented a van. Brian and myself were taken to the station by the CBY police and did not 

rent a vehicle. Mr. Barton was deposed in the federal court action this week and 

confirmed that neither he nor 1 ever left the police station until after Sergeant Cox anived 

and completed his work. The four ofus left together in Mr. McDonald's rented van at 

that time. 

DECLARATION OF KIMBERLY BYLER 
CBYv. ALASKAN ADVENTURE TOURS 
Case No. IJU-08-4J4 CI - Page 2 or S 
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6. The phone records show that I was on the phone at the station at II :58 am 

and again from 12: 10 pm until 12:18 pm. In CBY's second version of the story, after 

their own phone records were revealed it claims that Chief Nichols took me to the airport 

after that call ended. If Sergeant Cox got off the plane at 11:57 am and drove straight to 

the station, which took 4 or 5 minutes, he would have arrived before the calls ended, and 

before I went to the airport with Chief Nichols. I could not have done all of that and still 

made it back in time to be seen by Sergeant Cox within 5 or 10 minutes after he arrived, 

as he testified. Cox, p. 48, lines 12-25. In their first version, of course, I was at the 

airport when Sergeant Cox arrived as Chief Nichols testified to in the Juneau Trial. 

Whichever version you like, Sergeant Cox contradicts them both. 

7. Sergeant Cox testified that be never spoke with my husband about this 

matter. This is a minor point, but again, be is mistaken. I attach our phone records, that 

show a 4 minute phone call to Trooper Cox on November 19, 20 I O. In any event, there is 

nothing in my husband's statements about his conversation with Sergeant Cox that 

Sergeant Cox contradicted in his deposition. 

8. Mr. Barton testified in his deposition this week that he had 100 photos on 

his camera when Chief Nichols downloaded them onto his computer, some of which may 

have been of my filther in law. Jerry Byler. Chief Nichols showed them to me in my 

interview at the police station, and I discussed them on the recording of my interview. 

Our computer expert has said that those 100 photos should still be on CBY's computer 

back-up hard drives. Those photos will prove that I was interviewed after Mr. Barton, 

which will prove that the interview recordings have been edited, as the versions produced 

by CB Y on the eve of trial in this case place my police station interview before Mr. 

Barton. There is also new forensic evidence that has just surfaced in the last two days 

DECLARATION OF KIMBERLY BYLER 
COY". ALASKAN ADYENTURE TOURS 
Case No. IJU-08434 CI • Page 3 of 5 
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that will prove the download time of the photos into Chief Nichols computer have heen 

altered. We have received this information through a forensic review of the boat photo 

discs. We need access to the computers to prove this. 

9. Mr. Barton first testified in his deposition that he was interviewed before 

me at the police station, which is contrary to what CBY has said. Later, he said he 

couldn't remember who was interviewed first. Luke Barton told me over a year ago 

during a phone conversation that he was definitely interviewed first and he was positive 

of that fact. The recorded interviews produced by CBY have a two minute gap between 

the end of my secret contact interview and my interview at the station. Mr. Barton 

testified that there was a 15 to 20 minute gap between the time we arrived at the station 

and the first interview, and that I was on the phone before any interviews were done. 

There is no way that only two minutes passed between those two interviews. They have 

been doctored. and we need the computers reviewed to prove it. 

to. CBY got the benefit of having its Chief of Police testifY to things that 

never happened. IfCBY didn't think they needed a law enforcement officer to prove 

their case, CB Y would not have used his peljured testimony in the first place. Only later 

did we discover evidence that Chief Nichols sworn testimony was demonstrably false. I 

only ask that I get a fair trial, where the jury gets a chance to hear this new evidence that 

clearly shows that CBY misled the jury in its efforts to win the case. The fraudulent 

conveyance judgment against me and my company is a very serious problem for myself 

and the business. It rests on false testimony from a police chief that testified 2 separate 

days in 4 days of witness testimony in your courtroom. The adverse impact on myself 

and my company from this judgment will follow me for the rest of my life. We deserve 
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the chance to clear our name. I plead with you to allow me a fair trial or reverse this case 

for fraud and misconduct committed by CBY. 

I declare under the penalty of perjury under the laws of the United States of 

America that the foregoing is true and correct. 

DATED tbis ___ day of May, 2011. 
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The undersigned hereby certifies trat on 
the 2 4th dey of May, 2012, 
a copy of the foregoing was 
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[x I U. S. Mail, First C.l.ass, Posta ge 2 repaid 
( ) Hand-Delivery 
( ) Fax 
[ J Federal Express 

James T. B:!:"€.:nnan, Esquire 
Hed land, Brennan & !(eideman, PC 
1227 West Ninth Avenue, Suite 300 
Anchorage, AK 99501 

Ms. Riedel-Byler, aka Ms. C. 
Riedel, K. Christina Riedel and/or 
Ms. Byler 
P.O. Box 293 
Kodiak, AK 99615 

.l\.8C L(.asing, L:r~C 

P. O. ''ox 293 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

The undersigned hereby certifies tha t on 
the~ay of June, 2012, 
a copy of the foregoing was 
sent to the following v ia: 

[x] u.s. Mail, First Class, Postage Prepaid 
] Hand-Delivery 
] Fax 
] Federal Express 

James T. Brennan, Esquire 
Hedland, Brennan & Heideman, PC 
1227 West Ninth Avenue, Suite 300 
Anchorage, AK 99501 

Kimberly Riedel-Byler, aka Kimberly C. 
Riedel, K. Christina Riedel and/or 
Kimberly Byler 
PO Box KZB 
Kodiak, AK 99697 

ABC Leasing, LLC 
PO Box KZB 
KOdia!A AK 99697 
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